
Meeting papers

Constitution Committee

Monday 16 January 2017 at 3.00 pm

Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester





Date Published:6 January 2017     

Constitution Committee

Monday 16 January 2017 at 3.00 pm

Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

To note any apologies for absence.

Laura Gibbard

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 10th October 2016.

Laura Gibbard

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To answer any written public questions about matters which are 
within the powers and duties of the Committee.  The closing 
date/time for receipt of questions is 10.00am on Monday 9th 
January 2017.  To answer any oral question(s) put by members of 
the public with the consent of the Chairperson.

Depending on the nature of the questions asked it may not be 
possible to provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in 
which case a written answer will be supplied as soon as reasonably 
possible after the meeting.

Laura Gibbard

4  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

To answer any written members’ questions.  The closing date/time 
for the receipt of questions is 10.00am on Monday 9th January 
2017.

Laura Gibbard

5  REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL (Pages 5 - 
8)

Richard Blamey



    

To consider the report and recommendations of the Panel.

6  MOTION 783 - OPEN CONTRACTING (Pages 9 - 10)

The following Motion (proposed by Cllr Sarah Lunnon and seconded 
by Cllr Mike Sztymiak) was received at the full Council meeting held 
on 7 December 2016, and was referred to the Constitution 
Committee for consideration:

That Gloucestershire County Council commits to the Open 
Contracting Global Principles and takes action to ensure that:

- By the end of 2017 complete information for all contracting 
processes over £1m, including details of the tender, award and 
contract process, the full text of contracts and amendments, and 
performance information, are proactively published;

- By the end of 2018 complete information is available for all 
contracting processes, over £500*, is proactively published

The presumption should be that the text of all contracts is open by 
default. Redactions should only be permitted: (a) at the explicit 
written request of the parties to the contract; (b) subject to the public 
interest tests of the Freedom of Information act; (c) with the 
minimum possible redactions; and (d) with full justifications for any 
redaction given.

Furthermore, to ensure public access to information on the 
operation of outsourced services, all future contracts of the Council 
should include a model clause providing full public access to 
performance reporting and other key information required to 
exercise effective scrutiny.

(*This should be set the same as the threshold in the local 
government transparency code)

The Council debate on the Motion can be found at the following link:

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=14832

A paper submitted by Cllr Lunnon is attached.

The Committee is asked to determine the next steps.

Cllr Sarah 
Lunnon, Cllr 
Mike Sztymiak

7  MONITORING OFFICER CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION (Pages 
11 - 14)

To consider the attached report.

Jane Burns

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=14832


    

Membership –  Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE, Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Nigel Moor, 
Cllr Brian Oosthuysen, Cllr Klara Sudbury, Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr Lesley Williams MBE, 
Cllr Roger Wilson and Cllr Will Windsor-Clive 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Gibbard, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.gibbard@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Members are required to sign the attendance list.

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.gibbard@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE
MINUTES of a meeting of the Constitution Committee held on Monday 10 October 
2016 in Meeting Room 1&2 - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE
Cllr Jeremy Hilton
Cllr Nigel Moor
Cllr Brian Oosthuysen

Cllr Klara Sudbury
Cllr Ray Theodoulou
Cllr Lesley Williams MBE
Cllr Will Windsor-Clive

Apologies: Cllr Roger Wilson

Substitutes: Cllr Vernon Smith

Officers: Jane Burns, Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring 
Officer
Gillian Parkinson, Head of Legal Services
Sarah Scott, Director of Public Health
Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services
Laura Gibbard, Democratic Services Adviser

15. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

15.1 Apologies were received from Cllr Roger Wilson. 

15.2 Cllr Vernon Smith substituted at the meeting for Cllr Wilson.

16. ELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON 

Cllr Mark Hawthorne was appointed Chairperson for the 2016-17 Civic Year.

17. MINUTES 

The minutes of the previous meeting of 30 March 2016 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.

18. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions were received. 

19. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

No questions from members were received. 

20. MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

20.1 Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services, presented the revisions to the 
Members’ Allowances Scheme. 

20.2 Members were informed that, in preparation for the 2017 County Council election, a 
review of the Members’ Allowances Scheme had been undertaken to ensure 
provisions remained relevant. A number of sections that were no longer relevant 
had been removed from the scheme, including those that related to co-optee’s 
allowances, financial loss allowance, the reimbursement of expenses for non-
county councillors, and outside bodies. 

20.3 It was highlighted that the revisions would not affect the allowances currently paid 
to elected members. 

20.4 It was explained to members that the revised scheme included allowances for the 
members of the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP). The proposed allowances 
were £1000 for the Chair of the IRP, which reflected the additional time commitment 
associated with the role, and £250 for the panel members. The Committee noted 
that Group Leaders had indicated support for payments at this level. 

20.5 In response to a question, it was explained that research had indicated that IRP 
members at other local authorities were paid allowances of varying amounts. Simon 
Harper informed members that, given the level of time commitment of the IRP 
members for Gloucestershire County Council, the amount proposed in the revisions 
to the Members’ Allowances Scheme seemed reasonable. 

20.6 One member queried whether the inclusion of allowances for IRP members would 
set a precedent for other non-elected members to claim allowances. Members were 
informed that other non-elected members had not suggested that they required an 
allowance. 

20.7 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the revisions to the 
Members’ Allowances Scheme in Appendix A be adopted and included in the 
Constitution. 

21. HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - PROPOSED CHANGES TO TERMS OF 
REFERENCE 

21.1 Sarah Scott, Director of Public Health, presented the report on revisions to the 
Health and Wellbeing Board’s terms of reference.

21.2 It was explained that a number of drivers had influenced the proposed revisions. 
These included the letter from Jeremy Hunt in 2014, which requested that Health 
and Wellbeing Boards establish a formal mechanism for engaging providers in their 
work, the requirement in the NHS Five Year Forward View for the development of 
Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STPs), and the emergence of new models 
of health and social care integration. 

21.3 The proposed revisions to the Health and Wellbeing Board’s terms of reference 
included inviting the Chief Constable to join the Health and Wellbeing Board and 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

changing the voting rights of some member organisations. It was clarified that there 
would not be a shift in the balance of power. 

21.4 In response to a query from a member, it was confirmed that the Chair of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board had the casting vote and it was agreed that the final sentence 
at ‘Note 2’ in the terms of reference would be amended to state: ‘The Chair will 
have the casting vote.’

21.5 There was a discussion on the election of the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board. It was noted that county councillors were appointed as members of the 
Board by the Leader of Gloucestershire County Council.

21.6 It was highlighted to members that the quorum for meetings of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board needed to be amended in the terms of reference at ‘Note 6’ to 
state: ‘Quorum: The quorum for meetings of the Health and Wellbeing Board is that 
one quarter of the membership be present and at least 4 be voting member 
organisations.’

21.7 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the revisions to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board’s terms of reference be adopted and included in the 
Constitution as amended (a copy of the amended revisions to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board’s terms of reference is included in the signed copy of the minute 
book marked ‘Appendix 1’).

22. MONITORING OFFICER CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION 

22.1 Jane Burns, Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring Officer, explained 
that she had committed to reviewing the Employee Code of Conduct on a regular 
basis, and that for this review, only minor changes were required.

22.2 In response to a query from a member, Jane Burns explained that there was no 
requirement for employees to declare a membership of the Freemasons, unless it 
was relevant to their area of employment. It was also confirmed that there was no 
requirement in the member code of conduct for members to declare a membership 
of the Freemasons. 

22.3 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL to ratify the changes to the 
Constitution by the Monitoring Officer under delegated powers regarding:

 Code of Conduct, includes Confidential Reporting Procedure (Whistle-
blowing) for Employees other than staff in educational establishments (for 
whom a separate code exists), and;

 Part 3 of the Constitution, Section 5, Scheme of Delegation. 

CHAIRMAN

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Meeting concluded at 3.40 pm

Page 4



1 
 

 
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 

 

 

DECEMBER 2016 

 

 

1 Introduction 

 

1.1 This report has been produced by an Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) 

made up of members drawn from the local community.  The Panel is independent 

of the Council and its role is to make recommendations on the level of 

allowances paid to councillors. The object being to promote access to all in our 

diverse community who may wish to stand for election to serve that community 

via the democratic process.   

 

1.2   The members of the Panel: 

 
 Richard Blamey Former head of pensions with a large multi-national 

industrial gas company. Currently a pensions trustee and 

appointed chair of the Tewkesbury IRP. Also serves as 

treasurer and member of his local parish council. 

   

 Philip Lowery A former adviser to the Social Services Committee.  

Member of the IAG to the Gloucestershire Constabulary. 

 

 Fiona Miles Former Clinical Nurse Specialist in Respiratory Medicine.  

Former Treasurer and Secretary to play groups and the 

Royal College of Nursing Specialist Group.  Former 

Trustee of Gloucestershire Chest Fund.  Former school 

governor.  Involved in Gloucestershire Girl Guiding. Also 

a parish councillor, and active within the community. 

  

 Quentin Tallon Former Secretary of Cheltenham and District TUC with 

broad experience of trade union and other negotiations.  

Involvement with the voluntary sector. 

 

 

1.3 The Panel’s recommendations are in keeping with the following statutory 

provisions: 

 

1.3.1 Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and Local Government Act 2006 

 

1.3.2 The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 

(‘The Allowances Regulations’) 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



2 
 

 

2 Review process  

 

2.1 The Panel met on 28 September and 21 November 2016.     

 

2.2 This year, the Panel did not interview individual members, but Richard Blamey, 

met with Group Leaders and the Chief Executive. These meetings provided 

useful background information on developments at the Council.     

 
3 Allowances 

 
3.1 In February 2016, the Panel’s recommendation to raise the Basic Allowance to 

£10,000 was approved by full Council.  This figure is set for 2016-17 and 2017-

18.  The Panel is pleased that the Basic Allowance has at last reached a figure 

that is comparable with other county councils. 

 

3.2 Special responsibility allowances were frozen at their 2015-16 levels meaning 

that the principle of using the Basic Allowance as a ‘building block’ for the Special 

Responsibility Allowances (SRAs) has been lost.  Current allowances are shown 

at Appendix A.  

 

3.3 Our initial review of SRAs leads us to believe that they are low in comparison 

with those paid elsewhere.  However, we recognise that now is not the right time 

to make any changes but believe that the position should be reviewed after the 

elections in May 2017.  At that time, we feel that adjustments to SRAs will be 

required to reflect the political structure of the new Council. 

 

4 Recommendations  

 

4.1  To note that the Basic Allowance is frozen at £10,000 for the 2017-18 financial 

year.  

 

4.2 To review the Special Responsibility Allowances following the May 2017 election. 

 

 

 

Richard Blamey 

Chairman, Independent Remuneration Panel for Gloucestershire County Council  

Page 6



3 
 

Allowances for 2016-17 
 

Basic allowance payable to all 52 members (one vacancy):    £10,000
   
 
Special responsibility allowances (SRA)  Positions  Allowance 
 
Leader of the Council      1  £27,300 
 
Group leader (5 or more members) Lib Dem 14 1  £5,850 
(Not paid to Leader of the Council) Labour 9 1  £5,850 
Group Leader (4 members or less) Independent  2 1  £2,340
          
Cabinet member       7  £18,200 
 
Scrutiny chair       5  £5,460
  
Audit and Governance Committee chair    1  £5,460 
 
Planning Committee chair      1  £5,460 
 
Pensions Committee chair      1  £5,460 
 
Chair of Council       1  £9,100
  
Vice-chair of Council      1  £2,730
  
Adoption Panel member      2  £5,460
  
Fostering Panel member      1  £5,460
  
Political Group Spokesperson     14  £1,500 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



The case for proactive disclosure of contracting 
documents
Jan 5th 2017

Background

On 7th December 2016 a motion was presented to Council calling for the council to:

"commit to the Open Contracting Global Principles and takes action to ensure that: 

● By the end of 2017 complete information for all contracting processes over £1m, 
including details of the tender, award and contract process, the full text of contracts and 
amendments, and performance information, are proactively published;

● By the end of 2018 complete information is available for all contracting processes, over 
£500, is proactively published."

This sets out that:

"The presumption should be that the text of all contracts is open by default. Redactions 
should only be permitted: (a) at the explicit written request of the parties to the contract; 
(b) subject to the public interest tests of the Freedom of Information act; (c) with the 
minimum possible redactions; and (d) with full justifications for any redaction given."

This note, drafted by the Open Contracting Partnership, explores the national policy basis for this 
position, and highlights relevant international guidance.

Relevant national policy

The Freedom of Information Act provides a basis for proactive and reactive disclosure of 
information. 

The Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (1), published 5th Feb 2015, set out national 
requirements (derived from EU Directives) for the publication of tender and contract award 
notices. 

The accompanying Transparency Principles (2), published 24th March 2015 (3) set out a clear 
presumption in favour of publication of contract texts, "with commercial confidentiality being the 
exception rather than the rule", based on the idea of pre-defining a limited set of categories of 
commercially sensitive information.

The Local Government Transparency Code 2015 (4) calls for publication of contracts, and 
notes in §20 that "The Government has not seen any evidence that publishing details about 
contracts entered into by local authorities would prejudice procurement exercises or the interests 
of commercial organisations, or breach commercial confidentiality unless specific confidentiality 
clauses are included in contracts."

The Local Government Act 1972, The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
and The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 (5) provide in 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/102/contents/made
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/416421/Transparency_of_suppliers_and_government_to_the_public.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/public-sector-procurement-policy#procurement-policies-for-promoting-greater-transparency
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/408386/150227_PUBLICATION_Final_LGTC_2015.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/88/schedule/made#article-3-2


Schedule 12A a list of categories of exempt information, referenced on page 114 of the current 
Gloucestershire Constitution. 

Of particular note, the variation order in 2006 removes references to "amounts of expenditure 
proposed to be incurred by the authority under any particular contract" from the list of exempt 
information, suggesting §3 of "Rules on Access to Information About The County Council's 
Formal Business" on page 108 of the Gloucestershire Constitution may need revision to remove 
'information about prospective contracts', as other justifications beyond Schedule 12A would be 
required to provide a basis against disclosure of contracts. 

International policy and principles

The Open Contracting Global Principles (6), supported by the UK Government in the 2014-16 
and 2016-18 Open Government Partnership National Action Plans in §3(a) call for publication of 
contract texts and amendments. 

The World Bank Framework for Disclosure in Public-Private Partnership (PPP) projects (7) sets 
out a framework of documents and key figures to be published, including business cases, project 
IRR, risk logs and contract text. The framework covers pre-procurement disclosure of draft PPP 
contracts, and post-procurement disclosure of full contract text. An accompanying Jurisdictional 
Study (8) provides additional analysis of the UK legal situation on disclosure specifically of PPP 
information and contracts. 

Executed contracts and contract negotiation

It should be noted that there is an important distinction to be drawn between:

● Contracts under negotiation; and
● Executed contracts that are in force. 

Whilst policy and guidance generally provides for some stronger confidentiality protections in the 
former case, in the latter case, as the above outlines, there is now a general policy framework in 
presumption of disclosure. For major infrastructure projects, PPPs and other complex projects, 
pre-procurement disclosure of draft contracts is also frequently recommended. 

References
[1]:http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/102/contents/made
[2]:https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/416421/Transparency_of_suppliers_and_gov
ernment_to_the_public.pdf
[3]:https://www.gov.uk/guidance/public-sector-procurement-policy#procurement-policies-for-promoting-greater-transparency
[4]:https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/408386/150227_PUBLICATION_Final_LGTC
_2015.pdf 
[5] http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/88/schedule/made#article-3-2
[6] http://www.open-contracting.org/get-started/global-principles/
[7]:http://www.worldbank.org/en/topic/publicprivatepartnerships/brief/a-framework-for-disclosure-in-public-private-partnership-
projects
[8]:http://pubdocs.worldbank.org/en/910311448299077946/Disclosure-in-PPPs-Jurisdictional-Studies.pdf

Page 10

http://www.open-contracting.org/get-started/global-principles/
http://www.worldbank.org/en/topic/publicprivatepartnerships/brief/a-framework-for-disclosure-in-public-private-partnership-projects
http://pubdocs.worldbank.org/en/910311448299077946/Disclosure-in-PPPs-Jurisdictional-Studies.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/102/contents/made
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/416421/Transparency_of_suppliers_and_government_to_the_public.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/416421/Transparency_of_suppliers_and_government_to_the_public.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/public-sector-procurement-policy#procurement-policies-for-promoting-greater-transparency
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/408386/150227_PUBLICATION_Final_LGTC_2015.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/408386/150227_PUBLICATION_Final_LGTC_2015.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/88/schedule/made#article-3-2
http://www.open-contracting.org/get-started/global-principles/
http://www.worldbank.org/en/topic/publicprivatepartnerships/brief/a-framework-for-disclosure-in-public-private-partnership-projects
http://www.worldbank.org/en/topic/publicprivatepartnerships/brief/a-framework-for-disclosure-in-public-private-partnership-projects
http://pubdocs.worldbank.org/en/910311448299077946/Disclosure-in-PPPs-Jurisdictional-Studies.pdf
http://pubdocs.worldbank.org/en/910311448299077946/Disclosure-in-PPPs-Jurisdictional-Studies.pdf


Page 11

Agenda Item 7



Page 12



Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel
	6 Motion 783 - Open Contracting
	7 Monitoring Officer Changes to the Constitution

